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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Bharat Aluminium Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Bharat Aluminium Company Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including
the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SAs"), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not ce~~ the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness

of such controls.
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+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph i(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from beina appointed as a directar in tarms of Sactinn 1R4(7) nf the At
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(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b)
and paragraph i(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(h) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer note 28 and 41 to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 50 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 50 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
and

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.
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v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature for direct changes
to data in certain database tables was enabled for part of the year from March 03, 2025,
as described in note 51 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
respect of accounting software. Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior year has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, to the
extent it was enabled and recorded in the respective year, as stated in note 51 to the
financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

-

per Pramod Kumar Bapna
Partner

Membership Number: 105497
UDIN: 25105497BMKUXP3453
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 22, 2025

Page 5 of 20




Chartered Accountants

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 of the section on “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

TO THE MEMBERS OF BHARAT ALUMINIUM COMPANY LIMITED

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that

(i) (@ (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the
previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
disclosed in note 4 to the financial statements are held in the name of the Company
except for 1 immovable property as indicated in the below mentioned case as at
March 31, 2025 for which title deeds were not available with the Company and hence
we are unable to comment on the same.
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(i) (a)

As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the Company had been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the
year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records
examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly
returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
unaudited books of account of the Company.

The Company do not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores
in aggregate from financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current

assets of the Company.

The Company has made investments in companies and granted loans to employees
aggregating Rs.195 Crores and Rs. 0.93 Crores respectively and aggregate balances
outstanding as at March 31, 2025 were Rs. 343.32 Crores and Rs. 0.08 Crores
respectively. The Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other party during the year.

During the year, the investments made by the Company and terms and conditions of the
grant of loans given to employees are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Also,
during the year, the Company has not provided any guarantees or security to
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other party.

The Company has granted loans during the year to employees where the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments
or receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of loans granted to employees which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

There were no loans granted to employees which had falien due during the year, that
have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing
loans given to the same parties.

The Company has not granted any loans, either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment to employees. Therefore, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

(iv)  The Company has complied with the provisions of Sec 185 and 186 in respect of investments
to which these provisions are applicable. There are no loans, guarantees and security in
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(v)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Therefore, the requirement to
report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, related to the manufacture of Company’s products and generation of
electricity and are of the opinion that, prima facie, specified accounts and records have been
made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the same.

(a)

(b)

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and
services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-
tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

The dues of the goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and other statutory dues that have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as
set out in the attached Annexure 1(a) together with relevant details.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable

(@)

(b)

(©)

to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(f)

(b)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments). Therefore, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no
material fraud on the Company by officers and employees of the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of audit
procedures.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirements to report on clause 3(xii)(a) (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed
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(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

its business.

(b)  The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of this audit report, for the

period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) to (d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of statutory auditors of the Company during the year, and
accordingly, requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 48 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of our audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act (the
Act), in compliance with second proviso to suh =ection 5§ ~f section 135 of the Act.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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(b)  There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in accordance of provision of sub section 6 of
section 135 of the Act. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(b) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/ E300005

e

per Pramod Kumar Bapna
Partner

Membership Number: 105497
UDIN: 25105497BMKUXP3453

Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: April 22, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BHARAT ALUMINIUM COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Bharat Aluminium Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAl”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

T

per Pramod Kumar Bapna
Partner

Membership Number: 105497
UDIN: 25105497BMKUXP3453
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: Aprit 22, 2025
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Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All amounts in ¥ Crores, unless otherwise stated

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipments 4 9,920.35 9,423.85
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 7,358.85 4,136.81
(c) Other Intangible assets 4 13.96 0.51
(d) Exploration intangible assets under development 5 86.43 16.69
(e) Financial assets
Investments 6 343.32 148.32]
Trade receivables 7 125.55 116.22|
Loans 8 0.08 0.08
Other Financijal Assets 9 59.26 94.48
(f) Income tax assets (net) 39 - 61.29
(g) Other assets 10 319.81 635.87
Total non-current assets 18,227.61 14,634.12
Current assets
(a) Inventories 11 1,439.21 1,281.61
(b) Financial assets
Investments 12 1,040.34 -
Trade receivables 13 123.40 324.87|
Cash and cash equivalents 14 194.48 281.75
Loans 15 0.60 0.64
Derivatives 44 92.20 8.18
Others 16 78.27 57.93
(c) Other assets 17 205.81 264.98)
Total current assets 3,174.31 2,219.96
TOTAL ASSETS 21,401.92 16,854.08”
Continued.. 1




Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All amounts in ¥ Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 18 220.62 220.62
(b) Other equity 11,935.49 8,899.54
Total Equity 12,156.11 9,120.16
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings 19 2,547.47 1,784.79
Lease liabilities 20 9.98 -
Others 21 286.93 162.29
(b) Provisions 22 112.10 141.46
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 39 1,094.30 876.41
(d) Other liabilities 23 907.30 795.95
Total non-current liabilities 4,958.08 3,760.90,
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings 24 903.46 265.46
Lease Liabilities 20 3.70 -
Operational buyers' credit/suppliers' credit 25 684.35 1,038.42
Trade payables
i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 26 45.76 36.96
ZBIZ(;;arlisc:;tstandmg dues of creditors other than micro and small % 64107 83173
Derivatives 44 15.13 58.98
Others 27 659.59 527.42
(b) Provisions 28 186.44 146.95
(c) Income tax liabilities (net) 39 92.77 47.32
(d) Other liabilities 29 1,055.46 1,019.78,
Total current liabilities 4,287.73 3,973.02
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 21,401.92 16,854.08f
— ]

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 3010037 "~ """"7

Q‘\’\ |
per Pra Kumar Bapna

Partner
Membership No. 105497

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 22, 2025

For ;ind on behalf of the Board of Directors

Director

Kajesn \umar

CEQ & Whole-time Director

DIN: 00309302

elhi
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Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in ¥ Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note | For the year ended | For the year ended
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income:
Revenue from operations 30 15,807.97 13,140.73
Other operating income 31 100.95 141.56
Other income 32 559.24 274.60
Total income 16,468.16 13,556.89
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 6,681.35 5,606.65
(Increase) in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 33 (143.60) (147.29)
Power and fuel charges 3,344.45 3,508.25
Employee benefits expense 34 451.48 389.27
Finance costs 35 203.44 190.46
Depreciation and amortisation expense 36 625.09 577.17
Other expenses 37 1,374.67 1,570.32
Total expenses 12,536.88 11,694.83
Profit before tax 3,931.28 1,862.06
Tax expense: 39
-Current tax (Including tax related to earlier years) 769.19 331.05
-Deferred tax 193.16 146.08
Total tax expense 962.35 477.13
Net profit after tax 2,968.93 1,384.93
Other comprehensive income
Item that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Re-measurement (loss)/ gain on defined benefit obligations 40 (6.55) 837
(b) Tax (charge)/credit 39 0.02 (2.11)
Item that will be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
(a) Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges 98.32 (24.25)
(b) Tax (charge)/credit 39 (24.74) 6.10
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year 67.05 (11.89)
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,035.98 1,373.04
Earnings per share (of ¥ 10/- each) 38
Basic and Diluted (in ¥ per share) 134.57 62.77

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in ¥ Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

A. |Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,931.28 1,862.06
Adjusted for :
- Depreciation and amortisation expense 625.09 577.17
- Interest income (147.48) (102.06)
- Finance cost 203.31 187.65
- Unwinding of discount on site restoration liability 0.14 2.81
- (Profit) on sale of current investments (53.37) (10.18)
-(Profit) on sale/discard of property, plant and equipment (net) (14.92) (44.88)
- Net foreign exchange differences(unrealised) 1.54 177.58
- Unclaimed liabilities written back (net) (268.80) (60.69)
- Deferred government grant (26.73) (25.50)
- Provisions for doubtful debts /allowances of impairment on financial and non-financial assets 3.79 60.45

322,57 762.35
Operating profit before changes in assets and labilities 4,253.85 2,624.41
Adjusted for :
- (Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 188.36 (61.57)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (240.92) 111.54
- (Increase)/ Decrease in financial and other assets (18.71) 215.42
- (Decrease) in trade payables (181.86) (675.28)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities and provisions 5.10 {299.42)
(248.04) (709.31)

Cash generated from operations 4,005.81 1,915.10
Income taxes paid (net) (670.88) (311.71)
Net cash flows from operating activities 3,334.93 1,603.39

B. |Cash flow from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (including intangibles) (3,416.82) (2,499.56)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 44.37 61.45
Purchases of short-term investments (12,031.00) (5,504.00)
Proceeds from sale ot short-term investments 11,044.03 5,655.47
Interest received 148.89 101.09
Bank deposits made during the year (22.32) (6.74)
Bank deposits matured during the year 22.21 345
Purchase of Iong term investments (195.00) (73.32)
Net cash used in investing activities (4,405.64) (2,262.16)

C. |Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from current borrowings ' ’ 27.68 150.10
(Repayment) of current borrowings (0.46) (450.10)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 1,737.16 1,595.55
(Repayment) of long-term borrowings (362.59) (372.18)
Interest paid (410.46) (291.43)
Repayment of lease liabilities (7.89) -
Net cash flow in financing activities 983.44 631.94
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (87.27) (26.83)
Cash and cashi equivalents as at the beginning of the year (refer note 14) 281.75 308.58
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (refer note 14) 194.48 281.75




Note:

1. The figures in parenthesis indicate outflow

2. The above cash flow has been prepared under the "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 statement of cash flows

3. For movement in borrowings, refer note 19 and note 24

4. The Company enetered into non cash investment activity of acquisition of ROU Asset of 2 19.54 Cr (31st March 2024: Nil crores). This is not reflected in the
statement of cash flow

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date
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Chartered Accountants
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Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025

A Equity share capital

Particulars Numbers of shares Amount in ¥ Crores
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid:
As at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 22,06,24,500 220.62
B Other equity (All amounts in ¥ Crores, unless otherwise stated)
Reserve and Surplus ocl
. Total .
Particulars . . Effective Total
Capllals Retamei Generai reserves portion of cash  Total OCI
reserve earnings reserve (other than flow hedge®
OCI) Oow he ge
Balance as at April 1, 2023 9.20 7,083.67 430.31 7,523.18 332 332 7,526.50
Profit for the year - 1,384.93 - 1,384.93 - - 1,384.93
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year™® - 6.26 - 6.26 (18.15) (18.15) (11.89)
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - 1,391.19 - 1,391.19 (18.15) (18.15) 1,373.04
Balance as at April 1, 2024 9.20 8,474.86 430.31 8,914.37 (14.83) (14.83) 8,899.54
Profit for the year - 2,968.93 - 2,968.93 - - 2,968.93
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the yearz'5 - (6.54) - (6.54) 73.58 73.58 67.04
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year - 2,962.39 - 2,962.39 73.58 73.58 3,035.97
Balance as at March 31, 2025 9.20 11,437.25 430.31 11,876.76 58.75 58.75 11,935.49

1 General reserves
Under the erstwhile Indian Companies Act 1956, a general reserve was created through an annual transfer of net income at a specified percentage in accordance with
applicable regulations, to ensure that if a dividend distribution in a given year is more than 10% of the paid-up capital of the Company for that year, the total
dividend distribution is less than the total distributable results for that year. Consequent to introduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatory
transfer a specified percentage of the net profit to general reserve is no longer applicable.

2 Amount considered in Retained Earnings represent Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation (net of tax).
3 The balance in capital reserve is on account of capital restructuring done by the Company.

4 Retained earnings represent the cumulative profit /(loss) of the Company and effects of re-measurement of defined benefit obligations and can be utilised in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

5 Effective portion of cash flow hedge

The Company uses hedging instruments as part of its management of commaodity price risk. For hedging commodity price risk, the Company uses commodity
hedging contracts. To the extent these hedges are effective, the change in fair value of the hedging instrument is recognised in the effective portion of cash flow
hedges. Amounts recognised in the effective portion of cash flow hedges is reclassified to the statement of profit and loss when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Chartered Accountants
ICALl Firm Registration No.

Cd\\ '
per Pramod Kumar Bapna &_— Rajesh Kumar
Partner CEO & Whole-time Director
Membership No. 105497 DIN: 09586370

Placo: Naur Nialhi
Place: New Delhi CrupLletE rigal v al
Date: April 22,2025 cer Company Secretary
ICSI Membership No. A67456
Place: New Delhi

Date: April 22, 2025




Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
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Company overview

Bharat Aluminium Company Limited (referred to as “BALCO” or “the Company” hereinafter) was incorporated under the laws of the Republic of India with
its registered office at Aluminium Sadan, Core-6, Scope Office Complex, 7, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110 003 having 5.70 lakhs mtpa aluminium plants
comprising 2.45 lakhs mtpa and 3.25 lakhs mtpa plants with 2,010 MW of power plants comprising captive power plant of 270 MW, 540 MW, 600 MW and
independent power plant of 600 MW at Korba (Chhattisgarh). BALCO has captive Bauxite mines at Mainpat and Bodai Daldali. Vedanta Limited and the
Government of India respectively hold 51% and 49% of the paid up equity share capital of BALCO. The Corporate Identification Number is
U74899DL1965PLC004518.

Basis of preparation and basis of measurement of financial statements

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") (as amended from time to time).

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies, set out below and were consistently applied to all periods presented
unless otherwise stated.

These financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of Directors on April 22, 2025. The revision to these financial statements is permitted by the
Board of Directors after obtaining necessary approvals or at the instance of regulatory authorities as per provisions of the Act.

All financial information presented in Indian Rupees (INR) has been rounded off to the nearest Crores with two decimals except when indicated otherwise.
Amounts less than % 0.50 Crores have been presented as “0”.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for
certain financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies below. The Ind AS are prescribed under Section
133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the
asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Materijal accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods/rendering of services (Including Revenue from contracts with customers)

The Company’s revenue from contracts with customers is mainly from the sale of aluminium and power. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer which usually is on delivery of the goods to the shipping agent/ rendering of service at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognised net of
discounts, volume rebates, outgoing sales taxes/ goods and service tax and other indirect taxes. Revenues from sale of by-products are included in revenue.
The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements.

Certain of the Company’s sales contracts provide for provisional pricing based on the price on the London Metal Exchange (LME), as specified in the contract.
Revenue in respect of such contracts is recognised when control passes to the customer and is measured at the amount the entity expects to be entitled - being
the estimate of the price expected to be received at the end of the measurement period. Post transfer of control of goods, provisional pricing features are
accounted in accordance with Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ rather than Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ and therefore the Ind AS 115
rules on variable consideration do not apply. These “provisional pricing’ adjustments i.e. the consideration adjusted post transfer of control are included in
total revenue from operations on the face of the statement of profit and loss and disclosed by way of note to the financial statements. Final settlement of the
price is based on the applicable price for a specified future period. The Company’s provisionally priced sales are marked to market using the relevant forward
prices for the future period specified in the contract and is adjusted in revenue.

No element of financing is deemed present as the sales are generally made with a credit term of 0-120 days, which is consistent with market practice. Any
obligation to provide a refund is recognised as a provision. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Revenue from freight and insurance services is recognised over the period during which services are rendered.

Revenue from sale of power is recognised based on contracted rates with customers as approved by concerned regulatory authorities and rates arrived at
based on principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations as notified by the regulatory bodies, as applicable . Revenue from sale of power on
account of change in law events is recognised by Company based on order or report of regulatory authorities and best management estimates, wherever
applicable.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs part of its obligation by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration when that right is conditional on Company's future performance.

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is
due).

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from the customer. If a
customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is received.
As these are contracts that the Company expects, and has the ability, to fulfil through delivery of a non-financial item, these are presented as advance from
customers and are recognised as revenue as and when control of respective commodities is transferred to customers under the agreements.



Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025
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Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, with reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividends
Dividend income recognised in the statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is established, provided it is probable that the economic
benefits from current investments are associated with the dividend will flow to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Export benefits
Export benefits are accounted on recognition of export sales. Revenue relating to insurance claims and interest on delayed or overdue payments from trade
receivable is recognized when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collection exists.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Mining properties

The costs of mining properties, which include the costs of acquiring and developing mining properties are capitalized as mining properties separate from
Property, plant and equipment in the year in which they are incurred. When a decision is taken that a mining property is viable for commercial production (i.e.
when the Company determines that the mining property will provide sufficient and sustainable return relative to the risks and the Company decides to
proceed with the mine development), all further pre-production primary development expenditure other than on land, buildings, plant and equipment is
capitalized as developing asset until the mining property are capable of commercial production. Revenue derived during the project phase is adjusted from the
cost incurred on the project from which such revenue is generated.

Deferred stripping costs are included in mining properties within property, plant and equipment and disclosed as a part of mining properties. After initial
recognition, the stripping activity asset is depreciated on a unit of production method over the expected useful life of the identified component of the ore body.

In circumstances where a mining property is abandoned, the cumulative capitalised costs relating to the property are written off in the period in which it
occurs i.e. when the Company determines that the mining property will not provide sufficient and sustainable returns relative to the risks and the Company
decides not to proceed with the mine development.

Commercial reserves are proved and probable reserves as defined by the JTORC' Code, 'MORC' code or 'SAMREC' Code.
Changes in the commercial reserves affecting unit of production calculations are dealt with prospectively over the revised remaining reserves.

Other property, plant and equipment

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly
attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequently, property plant and equipment is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Land acquired free of cost or at below market rate from the government is recognized at fair value with corresponding credit to deferred income.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and
cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Assets held for sale are carried at lower of their carrying value or fair value less cost to sell.

Government grant related to fixed asset is capitalized along with the asset that it relates to and depreciated over the life of the primary asset.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment computed as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised. Major inspection and overhaul expenditure is
capitalised, if the recognition criteria are met.

Assets under consiruction

Assets under construction are capitalised in the assets under construction account. At the point when an asset is capable of operating in the manner intended
by management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment. Costs associated with the commissioning
of an asset and any obligatory decommissioning costs are capitalised until the period of commissioning has been completed and the asset is ready for its
intended use.

Capital work in progress is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation expense
Mining properties and other assets in the course of development or construction and freehold land and goodwill are not depreciated or amortised.

Mining properties

The capitalised mining properties are amortised on a unit-of-production basis over the total estimated remaining commercial proved and probable reserves of
each property or group of properties and are subject to impairment review. Costs used in the unit of production calculation comprise the net book value of
capitalised costs plus the estimated future capital expenditure required to access the commercial reserves. Changes in the estimates of commercial reserves or
future capital expenditure are dealt with prospectively.

Other assets

Depreciation on other Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives (determined by the management) as given below.

Management's assessment takes into account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past
history of replacement and maintenance support.
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Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

©

(D)

(B)

Estimated useful life of assels are as follows:

Asset Useful life
(in years)
Buildings (Residential; factory etc.) 3-60
Plant and equipment* 440
Railway siding 15
Office equipment 3-6
Furniture and fixture 5-10
Vehicles 8-10

*Useful lives of pot relining included in plant and machinery ranges from 5-7 years

Major inspection and overhaul costs are depreciated over the estimated life of the economic benefit to be derived from such costs. The carrying amount of the
remaining previous overhaul cost is charged to the statement of profit and loss if the next overhaul is undertaken earlier than the previously estimated life of
the economic benefit.

The Company reviews the residual value and useful life of an asset at least at each financial year-end. The Company considers climate-related matters,
including physical and transition risks in its assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual values. If expectations differ from previous estimates,
the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life on a straight line basis. Software license is amortised over the estimated useful life ranging from
0-5 years.
Amounts paid for securing mining rights are amortised over the period of the mining lease ranging from 16-25 years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is different from
previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units, A cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable Group of assets
that generate cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or Group of assets.

Impairment tests are carried out annually for all assets when there is an indication of impairment. The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there
is an indication that an asset may be impaired. The Company conducts an internal review of asset values annually, which is used as a source of information to
assess for any indications of impairment or reversal of previously recognized impairment losses. External factors, such as changes in expected future prices,
costs and other market factors are also monitored to assess for indications of impairment or reversal of previously recognized impairment losses.

If any such indication exists or in case of goodwill where annual testing of impairment is required, then an impairment review is undertaken and the
recoverable amount is calculated, as the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use.

Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants and does not reflect
the effects of factors that may be specific to the Company and not applicable to entities in general. Fair value for mineral assets is generally determined as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the asset, including any expansion prospects, and its eventual
disposal, using assumptions that an independent market participant may take into account. These cash flows are discounted at an appropriate post tax
discount rate to arrive at the net present value.

Value in use is determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the asset in its present form and
its eventual disposal. The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Value in use is determined by applying assumptions specific to the
Company's continued use and cannot take into account future development. These assumptions are different to those used in calculating fair value and
consequently the value in use calculation is likely to give a different result to a fair value calculation.

The carrying amount of the CGU is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the CGU is determined. If the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent that the
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss has previously been recognised.

Exploration and evaluation intangible assets:

Exploration and evaluation expenditure incurred prior to obtaining the mining right or the legal right to explore are expensed as incurred. Exploration and
evaluation expenditure incurred after obtaining the mining right or the legal right to explore are capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets (intangible
assets) and stated at cost less impairment, if any. Exploration and evaluation intangible assets are transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when the technical feasibility and commercial viability has been determined. Exploration intangible assets under development are assessed for
impairment and impairment loss, if any, is recognised prior to reclassification.

Exploration expenditure includes all direct and allocated indirect expenditure associated with finding specific mineral resources which includes depreciation
and applicable operating costs of related support equipment and facilities and other costs of exploration activities:

* Acquisition costs - costs associated with acquisition of licenses and rights to explore, including related professional fees.

* General exploration costs - costs of surveys and studies, rights of access to properties to conduct those studies {e.g., costs incurred for environment clearance,
defence clearance, etc.), and salaries and other expenses of geologists, geophysical crews and other personnel conducting those studies.

+ Costs of exploration drilling and equipping exploration and appraisal wells.

Exploration expenditure incurred in the process of determining mine exploration targets has been capitalised within "Exploration and evaluation assets".
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Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets - recognition & subsequent measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price as per Ind AS 115,
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial Assets at amortised cost

A 'financial assets' is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding,.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR amortisation is
included in interest income in statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

A 'financial assets' is classified as at FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are
recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognized
in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding fair value through other comprehensive income debt instrument is reported as
interest income using the EIR method.

For equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in OCL If the Company decides to
classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to the statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI,
is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVQCI criteria, as at FVTPL, However, such
election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as 'accounting mismatch'). The Company has
not designated any debt instrument as at FVIPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes being recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments
Any equity investments instrument in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

For equity instruments which are classified as FVTPL, all subsequent fair value changes are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Further, the provisionally priced trade receivables are marked to market using the relevant forward prices for the future period specified in the contract and is
adjusted in revenue.

Financial Assets - derecognition

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what
extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset,
nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following
financial assets:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities and deposits

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115.

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

At each reporting date, for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is
no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a
portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity
expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR.

ECL im pairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the year is recognized as income/ expense in statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation
for various financial instruments is described below:

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets. The Company
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

b) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value.
Rather, ECL amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCL.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with
the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

Financial liabilities - Recognition & Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or as loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, and in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and
derivative financial instruments.
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upen initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if
the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in
OCL These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Further, the provisionally priced trade payables are marked to market using the relevant forward prices for the future period specified in the contract and is
adjusted in costs,

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and Borrowings and Trade and Other payables)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and other payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR
amortjsation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and Joss.

Financial liabilities - Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The Company recognises a liability to pay dividend to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is no longer at
the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution with respect to interim dividend is authorised when it is approved by the
board of directors of the Company and final dividend is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in
equity.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

In order to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange, interest rate, and commodity price risks, the Company enters into forward, option, swap contracts and
other derivative financial instruments, The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profitand loss, except for the effective portion of cash
flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI and later reclassified to statement of profit and loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as basis
adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:

Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment

Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or
liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply
hedge accounting. The documentation includes the Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic
relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the Company will assess the effectiveness of changes in
the hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item'’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that
they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in statement of profit and loss immediately,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment
attributable to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss. Hedge
accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging instrument or hedged item expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in OCI in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts recognised in OCI are transferred to statement of profit and loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the hedged
financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. When the hedged item is the cost of a non-financial asset or non-financial
liability, the amounts recognised in OCI are transferred to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover (as part of the hedging strategy), or if its designation as a
hedge is revoked, or when the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI remains
separately in equity until the forecast transaction occurs or the foreign currency firm commitment is met.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception, all arrangements to determine whether they are, or contain, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

(a) Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income
from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts due from
lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
50 as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

(b) Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company
recognises lease liabilities towards future lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date when the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

(ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (and, in some instances, in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are
incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.



Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2025

(U]

(1))

®

In calculating tbe present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is generally not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the
lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. The Company’s lease liabilities have been separately preseneted in the
balance sheet.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term,

Inventories

Inventories and work-in-progress are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is determined on the following basis:

¢ Raw materials, fuel stock and stores and spares are valued on weighted average basis

*  Finished products and work-in-progress are valued at raw material cost plus costs of conversion, comprising labour costs and an attributable proportion
of manufacturing overheads based on normal levels of activity and are moved out of inventory on a weighted average basis and

= By-products are valued at net realisable value.

Net realisable value is determined based on estimated selling price, less further costs expected to be incurred for completion and disposal.

Inventories of 'Fuel Stock’ mainly consist of coal which is used for generating power. On consumption, the cost is charged off to 'Power and Fuel' charges in the
statement of profit and loss.

Government grants

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the Company will comply with the conditions attached
to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received.

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to
match them with the related costs, which they are intended to compensate.

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related
asset and presented within other income.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Taxation

Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Subject to the exceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes and on carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses;

« deferred income tax is not recognised on initial recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that:

(i) is not a business combination;

(ii) at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss); and

(iii) at the time of the transaction, does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences; and"
» deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of
profit and loss is recognised outside the statement of profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or equity).

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Further, management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of
uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better
resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Employee benefit schemes

(i) Short Term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits. These benefits include
salaries and wages, performance incentives and compensated absences which are expected to occur in next twelve months. The undiscounted amount of short-
term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

Compensated absences:

Compensated absences accruing to employees and which can be carried to future periods but where there are restrictions on availment or encashment or
where the availment or encashment is not expected to occur wholly in the next twelve months, the liability on account of the benefit is determined actuarially
using the projected unit credit method.
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*Defined contribution plan

Retirement benefits in form of superannuation is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the
superannuation fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the superannuation scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services
received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future payment or a
cash refund.

*Defined benefit plans - Gratuity and Provident fund

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed five years
or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the
number of years of employment with the Company. Presently the Company’s gratuity plan is partially funded.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The liability recognized in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period.
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

Provident Fund

Eligible employees of the Company receive benefits from a provident fund, which is a defined benefit plan. Both the eligible employee and the Company make
monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's salary. The Company contributes a portion to the
Balco Provident Fund Trust. The trust invests in specific designated instruments as permitted by Indian law. The remaining portion is contributed to the
Government administered pension fund. The rate at which the annual interest is payable to the beneficiaries by the trust is administered by the Government.
The Company has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return from the investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Company can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the Company recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present
value.

Post-retirement medical benefits (PRMB)

The Company has framed a scheme with a view to provide medical benefits to the regular employees of the Company and their spouses subsequent to their
retirement on completion of tenure including retirement on medical grounds and voluntary retirement on contributory basis. Based on actuarial valuations
conducted as at year end, a provision is recognized in full for the benefit obligation.

Share-based payments
Vedanta Limited offers certain share based incentives under the Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) to employees and directors of the Company. It recovers
the proportionate cost (calculated based on the grant date fair value of the options granted) from the Company, which is charged to the statement of profit and

loss.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with the applicable Ind AS.

Provisions represent liabilities for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive), as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Unwinding of the discount is recognized in statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Balance Sheet.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefit is probable.
The Company has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which are not recognized in the balance sheet.
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Restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs

An obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs arises when environmental disturbance is caused by the development or ongoing
production of a mine. Such costs, discounted to net present value, are provided for and a corresponding amount is capitalised at the start of each project, as
soon as the obligation to incur such costs arises. These costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss over the life of the operation through the
depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the discount on the provision. The cost estimates are reviewed periodically and are adjusted to reflect known
developments which may have an impact on the cost estimates or life of operations. The cost of the related asset is adjusted for changes in the provision due to
factors such as updated cost estimates, changes to lives of operations, new disturbance and revisions to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the asset is
depreciated prospectively over the lives of the assets to which they relate. The unwinding of the discount is shown as finance cost in the statement of profit and
loss.

Costs for the restoration of subsequent site damage, which is caused on an ongoing basis during production, are provided for at their net present value and
charged to the statement of profit and loss as extraction progresses. Where the costs of site restoration are not anticipated to be material, they are expensed as
incurred.

Provision for site restoration cost are reviewed anually and adjusted for changes including mine utilisation plan.

Accounting for foreign currency transactions and translations
The functional currency of the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates, for all principal businesses
of the Company, the functional currency is Indian rupee (%) and the financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (3).

In the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the respective functional currencies are translated into their functional
currencies at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies are translated into
functional currencies at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies and measured at
historical cost or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were determined.

All exchange differences are included in the statement of profit and loss except those where the monetary item is designated as an effective hedging
instrument of the currency risk of designated forecasted sales or purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

Exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings, are capitalized as part of borrowing costs in
qualifying assets.

The Company had applied paragraph 46A of AS 11 under Previous GAAP. Ind AS 101 gives an option, which has been exercised by the Company, whereby a
first time adopter can continue its Indian GAAP policy for accounting for exchange differences arising from translation of long-term foreign currency
monetary items recognised in the Indian GAAP financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first Ind AS financial
reporting period. Hence, foreign exchange gain/loss on long-term foreign currency monetary items recognized upto March 31, 2016 has been
deferred/capitalized. Such exchange differences arising on translation/settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items and pertaining to the
acquisition of a depreciable asset are amortised over the remaining useful lives of the assets.

Exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of long-term foreign currency monetary items, acquired post April 01, 2016, pertaining to the
acquisition of a depreciable asset are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") data for its equity shares. Basic EFS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

Buyers' Credit/ Suppliers’ Credit and vendor financing

The Company enters into arrangements whereby banks and financial institutions make direct payments to suppliers for raw materials and project materials.
The banks and financial institutions are subsequently repaid by the Company at a later date providing working capital timing benefits. These are normally
settled up to twelve months (for raw materials) and up to 36 months (for project and materials). Where these arrangements are with a maturity of up to twelve
months, the economic substance of the transaction is determined to be operating in nature and these are recognised as operational buyers’ credit/ suppliers'
credit and disclosed on the face of the balance sheet. Where these arrangements are with a maturity beyond twelve months and up to thirty six months, the
economic substance of the transaction is determined to be financing in nature, and these are presented within borrowings in the balance sheet. Interest expense
on these are recognised in the finance cost. Payments made by banks and financial institutions to the operating vendors are treated as a non cash item and
settlement of due to operational buyer's credit/ suppliers’ credit by the Company is treated as an operating cash outflow reflecting the substance of the
payment.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the foliowing criteria:

- it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle.

- itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

- it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

- it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

- the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that
could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non current only.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per effective interest rate (EIR) and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to
the project cost during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use i.e. when they are capable of commercial
production. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a qualifying capital project, the amount capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs
incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance a qualifying capital project, the income generated from such short-
term investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. If any specific borrowing remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, that borrowing then becomes part of general borrowing. Where the funds used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the
amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Company during the year.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Capitalisation of interest on borrowings related to construction or development projects is ceased when substantially all the activities that are necessary to
make the assets ready for their intended use are complete or when delays occur outside of the normal course of business.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits which have maturity of three months or less from the
date of acquisition, that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above and additionally includes
unpaid dividend account.

Segment Reporting

Each of the reportable segments derives its revenues from these main products and hence these have been identified as reportable segments by the Company’s
Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM").

Segment Revenue, Results, Assets and Liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and amount allocated based on cost.
Unallocated expenditure consist of common expenditure incurred for all the segments and expenses incurred at corporate level. The assets and liabilities that
cannot be allocated between the segments are shown as unallocated assets and unallocated liabilities respectively. .

Pricing between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.

Application of new and amended standards
The Company has adopted, with effect from April 01, 2024, the following new and revised standards and interpretations. Their adoption has not had any
significant impact on the amounts reported in the financial statements.

1. Amendment in IND AS 116: Leases

The amendments specify the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the
seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. It does not have any material impact on the company.

2, New IND AS 117: Insurance Contracts:

This standard provides consistent principles for all aspects of accounting for insurance contracts. It does not have any material impact on the company.

Standards notified but not yet effective

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the financial statements.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised and future periods affected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements are elaborated in note no. 45.

Significant Judgements

(i) Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Company. Where it is management’s
assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is uncertain, the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse
outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the consolidated financial statements.

While considering the possible, probable and remote analysis of taxation, legal and other claims, there is always a certain degree of judgement involved
pertaining to the application of the legislation which in certain cases is supported by views of tax experts and/or earlier precedents in similar matters.
Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse
impact on the Company’s financial position or profitability.
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(ii) Climate Change

The Company aims to achieve net carbon neutrality by 2050 or sooner & committed to reduce its GHG intensity by 20% by 2026 & Absolute emission by 25%
by 2030 from 2021 baseline, achieve net water positivity by 2030 as part of their climate mitigation and adaptation efforts and sustainability strategy. The
Company conducted climate risk assessment and outlined its risks and opportunities in TCFD report. Climate change may have various impacts on the
Company in the medium to long term. These impacts include the risks and opportunities related to the demand of products, impact due to transition to a low-
carbon economy, disruption to the supply chain, risk of physical harm to the assets due to extreme weather conditions, regulatory changes etc. The accounting
related measurement and disclosure items that are most impacted by our commitments, and climate change risk more generally, relate to those areas of the
financial statements that are prepared under the historical cost convention and are subject to estimation uncertainties in the medium to long term.

The potential effects of climate change may be on assets and liabilities that are measured based on an estimate of future cash flows. The main ways in which
potential climate change impacts have been considered in the preparation of the financial statements, pertain to (a) inclusion of capex in cash flow projections,
(b) recoverable amounts of existing assets (c) review of estimates of useful lives of property, plant and equipment, (d) assets and liabilities carried at fair value,
etc.

The Company's strategy consists of mitigation and adaptation measures and is committed to reduce its carbon footprint by limiting its exposure to coal-based
projects and reducing its GHG emissions through high impact initiatives such as investment in Renewable Energy (505 MW Power delivery agreement (PDA")
with Serentica Renewables signed on a Company captive basis), fuel switch, electrification of vehicles and mining fleet and energy efficiency opportunities.
However, renewable sources have limitations in supplying round the clock power, so existing power plants would support transition and fleet replacement is
part of normal lifecycle renewal. We have also taken certain measures towards water management such as commissioning of Zero Liquid Discharge plants,
sewage treatment plant, dry tailing plant, rainwater harvesting, thus reducing freshwater consumption. These initiatives are aligned with the Company’s ESG
strategy and no material changes were identified to the financial statements as a result.

As the Company's assessment of the potential impacts of climate change and the transition to a low-carbon economy continues to mature, any future changes
in the Company’s climate change strategy, changes in environmental laws and regulations and global decarbonisation measures may impact the Company’s
significant judgments and key estimates and result in changes to financial statements and carrying values of certain assets and liabilities in future reporting
periods. However, as of the balance sheet date, the Company believes that there is no material impact on carrying values of its assets or liabilities.
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Bharat Aluminium Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
(All amounts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated)

6

Financial assets - Non current : Investments’
(at fair value through OCl and profit and loss)

Measured at fair value through profit and loss
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

A. Investment in Preference shares - Unquoted

Serentica Renewables India 1 Private Limited*
(14,90,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
(March 31, 2024: 75,00,000) of Z 10 each) 149.00 75.00
Serentica Renewables India 7 Private Limited
(9,03,20,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
(March 31, 2024: 4,03,20,000) of % 10 each) 90.32 40.32

Serentica Renewables India 8 Private Limited
(6,30,00,000 Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares

(March 31, 2024: 3,30,00,000) of 10 each) 63.00 33.00
Total (A) 302.32 148.32
*The Company does not exercise significant influence or control on decision of investees. Hence they are not being construed as associate
companies.

Measured at fair value through other comjsrehensive income

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

B. Investment in equity shares - Unquoted
Serentica Renewables India 1 Private Limited

(4,10,00,000 equity shares of class B (March 31, 2024: Nil) of 10 each) 41.00 -
Total (B) 4100 )
[Total (A+B) I 343.32 | 148.32 |

1. The Company has executed new Power Delivery Agreements ("PDA") with Serentica group companies (Serentica Renewables India
1 Private Limited, Serentica Renewables India 7 Private Limited and Serentica Renewables India 8 Private Limited) which are
associates of Vedanta Incorporated {Erstwhile Volcan Investments Limited (Volcan)}, for procuring renewable power over twenty five
years from date of commissioning of the combined renewable energy power projects (“the Projects”) on a group captive basis.

These Serentica group companies were incorporated for building the Projects. During the current year, the Company has invested T
195.00 Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥ 73.32 Crores) in Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference shares (“OCRPS”) of ¥ 10 each of
Serentica group companies. The Company has considered the investments as fair value through profit and loss.

These OCRPS will be converted into equity basis conversion terms of the PDA, resulting in Company’s holding twenty six percent
stake in its equity. Out of the total investinent, 41.00 Crores (31 March 2024: ¥ NIL Crores) worth of OCRPS are converted into equity
shares of SRI1PL as per the terms of the PDA. As at 31 March 2025, total outstanding commitments related to PDA with Serentica
Group Companies are ¥ 151.08 Crores (31 March 2024: T 346.68 Crores). The Company has involved external valuations experts for the

fair valuation of investments as on the balance sheet date

Financial assets - Non current : Trade receivables
(at amortised cost)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured
Considered good - -
Significant increase in credit risk 188.76 174.75
Total 188.76 174.75
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss (63.21) (58.53)
Total Non Current trade receivable 125.55 116.22
Notes:

1. Carrying value of trade receivable may be affected by the changes in the credit risk of counterparties as explained in note no. 44 as
well as for time value of money where collection is expected to be delayed.

). Maturity profile is as per note no. 44.

3. For lien/charge against trade receivable refer note nos. 19, 24 and 25.

4. No trade receivable is due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person (March
31, 2024- Nil). No trade receivable is due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a
member.




Bharat Aluminium Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

(All amounts in T Crores, unless otherwise stated)
5. Trade receivables includes Z 90.03 Crores (March 31, 2024: Z 90.03 Crores) (Net of allowance of expected credit loss (“ECL") of ¥ 45.34
Crores) on account of differential energy charges for supply of power to customers under power supply agreements, pursuant to
amendment in escalation rates of domestic coal by Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (CERC) for the period October 1, 2012 to
September 30, 2014 which is disputed in Honourable Delhi High Court. Supported by legal opinion obtained, management believes it
to be highly probable that the disputes will ultimatly be resolved in favour of the Company.
6. Ageing has been considered from the date of credit period expired, wherever applicable or from the date of invoice where there are
no contracted credit period.

Non Current trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

Outstanding from due date of payment as on March 31, 2025
Particulars Not Due Upto 6 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than Total
months 1year years years 3 years
Disputed**
- considered good - - - - - - .
- which have significant increase in credit risk 2.93 5.43 10.60 2.98 31.44 135.38 188.76
— credit impaired - - 2 - - - .
2.93 5.43 10.60 2.98 31.44 135.38 188.76
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss (0.98) (1.80) (3.55) (1.00) (10.54) (45.34) (63.21)
1.95 3.63 7.05 1.98 20.90 90.04 125,55
Total 1.95 3.63 7.05 1.98 20.90 90.04 125.55
Non Current trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024*:
Outstanding from due date of payment as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Not Due Upto 6 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than Total
months 1year years years 3years
Disputed™
- considered good - - - - - -
- which have significant increase in credit risk 3.29 1.98 - 20.91 - 148.57 174.75
— credit impaired - - - - - - -
3.29 1.98 - 20.91 - 148.57 174,75
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss - - - - - (58.53) (58.53)
3.29 1.98 - 20.91 - 90.04 116.22
Total 3.29 1.98 - 20.91 - 90.04 116.22
*There are no unbilled trade receivable as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
** Disputed dues are considered good basis sub note 5 & 6 above
Movement of Allowance for expected credit loss
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 58.53 34.10
Change in estimates - -
Additions to allowances 4.68 58.53
Adjusted against bad debts written off - (34.10)
Closing Balance 63.21 58.53
8 Financial assets - Non current : Loans
(at amortised cost)
Particulars _ _ As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees' 0.08 0.08
Total 0.08 0.08

1. For details of classification of financial assets and fair value hierarchy refer note no. 44.
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9 Financial assets - Non Current : Others
(at amortised cost)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits 3951 51.87
Site restoration asset - 15.46
Bank Deposits 17.72 2335
Other receivables 2.03

Unsecured, considered doubtful

Other receivables having significant increase in credit risk 1.02 5.71
Less: allowance for expected credit loss (1.02) (1.91)
Total 59.26 94.48

1. For details of classification of financial assets and fair value hierarchy refer note no. 44.
2. Bank deposits represents fixed deposits with maturity more than 12 months under lien with banks against bank guarantee.

10  Other non-current assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances 20248 526.01
Prepaid expenses’ 0.57 4.96
Claims and other receivables® 116.76 104.90
Total 319.81 635.87

1. Includes ¥ NIL (March 31, 2024: ¥ 4.43 Crores) excess of actual expenditure incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility over

obligation till date, refer note no 37 (2).
2. Claims and other receivables includes following :

a. Receivables pertaining to energy development cess levied by Government of Chhattisgarh ¥ 34.54 Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥ 34.54
Crores) which has been challenged by the Government of Chhattisgarh in the Honourable Supreme Court of India. Supported by a
legal opinion obtained, management believes that it is possible that the matter will be decided in favour of the Company.

b. Claims recoverable from Madhya Pradesh Electricity Board (MPEB)/Chhattisgarh State Electricity Board (CSEB) amounting to ¥
10.08 Crores (March 31, 2024 : % 10.08 Crores), which are disputed by them. The Company is also disputing the claim for Electricity
duty/surcharge made by MPEB/CSEB amounting to ¥ 13.23 Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥ 13.23 Crores). The net amount
recoverable/payable can be ascertained on settlement of the disputes. Supported by a legal opinion obtained, management believes
that it is probable that the matter will be decided in favour of the Company. The said claim is interest-bearing.

11 Current assets: Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(a) Raw materials 493.28 458.34
Goods-in transit 238.06 232.95
731.34 691.29

(b) Fuel stock 151.70 9235
Goods-in transit 10.24 6.41
161.94 98.76

(c) Work-in-progress 351.94 292.87

Goods-in transit - -

351.94 292.87

(d) Finished goods' 1.67 0.29
(e) By-product' 0.00 017
(f) Stores and spares® 185.18 193.84
Goods-in traneit 7.14 439
192.32 198.23

Total 1,439.21 1,281.61
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13

Notes:

1. Inventories held at net realizable value amounted to ¥ 1.39 Crores (March 31, 2024: % 3.02 Crores). The write down on inventories
amounting to ¥ 9.85 Crores for the year (March 31, 2024: % 7.31 Crores) has been charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

2. Provision in respect of slow-moving, damaged, or obsolete inventories of stores and spares lying in books on March 31, 2025 is ¥7.89

Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥ 12.17 Crores).

3. Entire inventory has been hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings of the Company. For more details of

lien/ charge against inventories refer note no. 19, 24 & 25.

4. For mode of valuation for each class of inventories, refer note no. 3(a)(I).
5. Inventories lying with third party is ¥ 255.44 Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥ 243.75 Crores)

Financial assets - Current : Investments®
(at fair value through profit and loss)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Investments -

Investments in mutual funds - unquoted 1,040.34 -

Total 1,040.34 -

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 1,040.34 -

1. For determination of fair value refer note no. 44.

Financial Assets- Current : Trade receivables

(at amortised cost and at fair value through profit and loss)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Secured®

Considered good 120.03 322.54
120.03 322.54

Unsecured*

Considered good 3.37 2.33

3.37 2.33
Total 123.40 324.87

1.Carrying value of trade receivables may be affected by the changes in the credit risk of counterparties as explained in note no. 44.

2. Maturity profile is as per note no. 44.

3. For lien/charge against trade receivables refer note nos. 19, 24 and 25.

4. No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. No
trade receivables are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member

(March 31, 2024 : Nil). For amount due from related parties, refer note no. 43.
5. Ageing has been considered from the date of credit period expired, wherever applicable or from the date of invoice where

there are no contracted credit period.

6. Debtors are secured against letter of credit or bank guarantee.

Current trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025*;

Outstanding from due date of payment as on March 31, 2025

Particulars
Not Due Upto 6 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than Total
months 1 year years years 3 years
Undisputed
- considered good 94.46 28.94 - - - - 123.40
- credit impaired - - - - - - -
94.46 28.94 - - - - 123.40
Less: Allowances for expected credit loss - - - - - - -
94.46 28.94 - - - - 123.40
Total** 123.40
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Current trade receivables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024*;

Outstanding from due date of payment as on March 31, 2024
Particulars Not Due Upto 6 | 6 months - 1-2 2-3 More than Total
months 1 year years years 3 years
Undisputed
- considered good 148.89 175.98 - - - 324.87
- credit impaired - - - - - - -
148.89 175.98 - - - - 324.87
Less: Allowances for credit impaired - - - - - - -
148.89 175.98 - - - - 324.87
Total** 324.87
*There are no unbilled trade receivable as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
** There are no disputed receivables as on March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024.
14 Financial Assets- Current : Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Balances with banks 194.47 281.75
Cash on hand 0.01 0.00
Total 194.48 281.75
15 Financial assets - Current : Loans
(at amortised cost)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to employees 0.60 0.64
Total 0.60 0.64
16 Financial Assets- Current : Others
(at amortised cost)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 0.06 0.13
Receivables from related parties (also refer note no. 43) 14.23 6.43
Site restoration asset’ 19.77 -
Other receivables® 44.21 51.37
Total 78.27 57.93
Notes:

1. For details of classification of financial assets and fair value hierarchy refer note no. 44.
2. Represents deposits with Ministry of Coal pertaining to coal block which earns interest at fixed rate based on respective deposit rate.
3. Includes marked to market valuation of derivative contract entered into to hedge risk of fluctuation of commodity prices as at March

31, 2025 % 35.82 Crores (March 31, 2024 ¥ 34.61 Crores), also refer note 44.

17 Other Current Assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Unsecured, considered good

Advances to suppliers 146.61 173.23
Prepaid expenses1 39.67 63.13
Claims and other receivables 6.45 -
Balances with statutory / Government authorities 7.71 17.73
Export incentives receivable 5.37 10.89
Total 205.81 264.98
Notes:

1. Includes ¥ 23.86 Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥ 36.66 Crores) excess of actual expenditure incurred towards Corporate Social

Responsibility over obligation till date, refer note no 37 (2).
2. Also refer note 10.2 for claims and other receivables.
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18 Share capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised
Balance at the end of the year (equity shares of 2 10 each) 50,00,00,000 500.00 50,00,00,000 500.00
Issued, subscribed and fully Paid up
Balance at the end of the year (equity shares of 2 10 each) 22,06,24,500 220.62 22,06,24,500 220.62
Total 22,06,24,500 220.62 22,06,24,500 220.62
i) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding as at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period :

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024

Particulars
Number of shares Amount Numpber of shares Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the 22,06,24,500 220.62 22,06,24,500 220.62
year
ii) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Name of Shareholder 4 £
arenolde No. of Shares held % of Holding, No. of Shares held | % of Holding,

a) Vedanta Limited ' and their nominees 11,25,18495 51% 11,25,18495 51%
b) Government of India- - President of India 10,81,06,005 49% 10,81,06,005 49%
Total 22,06,24,500 100% 22,06,24,500 100%

1) Vedanta Limited, Holding Company holds 11,25,18,495 shares in the Company. The subsidiaries and associates of Vedanta limited do not hold any equity
shares in the Company. Ultimate holding Company Volcan Investments Limited and its subsidiaries and associates do not hold any equity shares in the

Company.

iii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to one vote per share held. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is suhject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend,
which is paid as and when declared by the Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

iv) Shareholding of promoter

Promoter Name

As at March 31,2025

As at March 31,2024

No. of shares at the end
of the year

% of Total Shares

% change during
the year

No. of shares at the end

of the year

% of Total Shares

% change during
the year

Vedanta Limited

11,25,18,495

51%

11,25,18,495

o

51

o

v}

As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/ members, the above shareholding represents legal ownership of shares.
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Financial liabilities -Non current Borrowings %
(at amortised cost)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Secured

Rupee Term loans from banks' 2,547.47 1,784.79
Total 2,547.47 1,784.79
1. Interest, repayment terms and security details of borrowings As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Rupee Term loan (HDFC Bank) 295.05 109.39
Rupee term loans from various banks secured by first pari passu charge on movable

property, plant and equipments (excluding coal block) of the Company. Weighted

average rate of interest is 8.55% (March 31, 2024: 8.87%) and are repayable in 16

quarterly installments.

Rupee Term loan (Bank of Baroda) 439.28 478.92
Rupee term loans from various banks secured by first pari passu charge on movable

property, plant and equipments (excluding coal block) of the Company. Weighted

average rate of interest is 8.77% (March 31, 2024: 8.63%) and are repayable in 14

quarterly installments.

Rupee Term loan (UCO Bank) 424.06 -
Rupee term loans from various banks secured by first pari passu charge on movable

property, plant and equipments (excluding coal block) of the Company. Weighted

average rate of interest is 9.51% (March 31, 2024: 8.69%) and are repayable in 17

quarterly installments.

Rupee Term loan (Canara Bank) 2,265.32 1,327.58
Rupee term loans from various banks secured by first pari passu charge on movable

property, plant and equipments (excluding coal block) of the Company. Weighted

average rate of interest is 8.65% (March 31, 2024: 8.81%) and are repayable in 14

quarterly installments.

Rupee Term loan (Axis Bank) 0.00 134.36
Rupee term loans from various banks secured by first pari passu charge on movable

property, plant and equipments (excluding coal block) of the Company. Weighted

average rate of interest as on March 31, 2024 is 9.34%

Total borrowings 3,423.71 2,050.25
Less: Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings 876.24 265.46
Net Non-Current borrowings 2,547.47 1,784.79

2. The credit facilities are subject to certain financial and non- financial covenants. The primary covenants which must be complied with
include debt service coverage ratio, total outside liabilities to total net worth, fixed assets coverage ratio and ratio of total term liabilities
to net worth. The Company has complied with the covenants as per the terms of the loan agreement.

19A Movement in borrowings during the year is provided below:
Particulars Borrowings due within| Borrowings due after one Total
one year year

Opening Balance as on April 1, 2023 652.14 477.33 1,129.47

Cash inflow 150.10 1,595.55 1,745.65

Cash outflow (450.10) (372.18) (822.28)
Other Non cash changes (86.68) 84.09 (2.59)
As at April 1, 2024 265.46 1,784.79 2,050.25

Cash inflow 27.68 1,737.16 1,764.85

Cash outflow (0.46) (362.59) (363.05)
Other Non cash changes 583.56 (611.89) (28.34)
As at March 31, 2025 876.24 2,547.47 3,423.71

Other non-cash changes comiprises of amortisation of borrowing costs and reclassification between borrowings due within one year and

borrowings due after one year.
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Movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars Amount
At 1st April 2024 -
Additions during the year 19.54
Interest on lease liabilities 2.03
Payment made’ (7.89)
As at 31st March 2025 13.68
1. Includes payment of interest on lease liabilities of ¥ 2.03 Crores.
Financial liabilities - Non current: Others'
(at amortised cost)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Capital creditors 286.93 162.29
Total 286.93 162.29
1. For details of classification of financial liabilities and fair value hierarchy refer note no. 44
Provisions : Non current
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Provision for employee benefits' 11210 129.96
Provision for site restoration and rehabilitation®* - 11.50
Total 112.10 141.46
1. Includes Gratuity and Post Retirement Medical Benefits (PRMB). Also refer note no. 28 and 40.
2. Provision for site restoration and rehabilitation
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Opening balance 11.50 8.69
Add: Unwinding of discount 0.14 242
Revision in estimates* - 0.39
Reclassified to Current provisions (11.64) -

- 11.50

Closing balance

*Also refer note 36 for depreciation and amortisation of site restoration assets.

3.The provisions for site restoration and rehabilitation represent the management’s best estimate of the costs which will be incurred in
the future to meet the Company’s obligations under existing Indian law and the terms of the Company’s contractual arrangements for
coal mines. These amounts are calculated by considering discount rates within the range of 8% to 9%, and become payable on closure of

mines and are expected to be incurred over a period of upto 2 years.

Other liabilities : Non current

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Deferred Governmeigrants1 907.30 795,95
Total 907.30 795.95

1. Represents government assistance in the form of the duty benefit availed under Export Promotion Capital Goods (EPCG) Scheme on
import of plant and equipments accounted for as government grant as per the guidance given under Ind AS 20.

Financial liabilities -Current Borrowings :
at amortised cost)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at March 31, 2024

Secured

Current maturities of long term borrowings' 876.24 265.46
876.24 265.46

Unsecured

Working Capital Loan 27.22 -

27.22 -
Total 903.46 265.46
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1. Current maturities of long term borrowings

Particulars As at March 31,2025 | As at March 31, 2024
Term loans from banks 876.24 265.46
Total 876.24 265.46

1.1. Interest, security and payment terms as detailed in note no. 19 and for movement in borrowings during the year refer note 19A.
1.2. There were no differences as reported in the quarterly returns in terms of current assets secured against borrowings outstanding
during the year.

Financial liabilities -Current Operational buyers' credit/suppliers’ credit'?
(at amortised cost)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 | As at Marxch 31, 2024
Operational buyers' credit/suppliers' credit 684.35 1,038.42
Total 684.35 1,038.42
1. Operational Buyers'/Suppliers' Credit is availed in foreign currency from offshore branches of Indian banks or foreign banks at an

interest rate ranging from 4.65% to 6.20% per annum.
2. Operational buyers' credit/ suppliers' credit from HDFC Bank and State Bank of India are secured by way of hypothecation of stock of
raw materials, work-in-progress, finished products, consumable stores and spares, bills receivables, book debts and all other movable
PPE, both present and future. The charges rank pari passu among banks under the multiple banking arrangements, both for current and
non-current fund based and non-fund based facilities.

Financial liabilities - Current: Trade payables™
(at amortised cost)

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises’ 45.76 36.96
Total (a) 45.76 36.96
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises™ 625.31 827.36
Dhues to related parties (also refer note no. 43) 15.76 437
Total (b) 641.07 831.73
Total (atb) 686.83 868.69
Notes:

1. During the year ended March 31, 2024 pursuant to withdrawal of show cause notice issued by the Nominated Authority for imposition
of levy for the financial year end March 31, 2021. for efficiency parameters related to extraction as the Company had achieved the Peak
Rated Capacity (PRC) in the financial year 2019-20, the Company has reversed provision aggregating ¥ 131.00 Crores towards such levy
for the year ended March 31, 2021 and year ended March 31, 2022 which has been netted off with Power and Fuel expense.

2. Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled up to 180 days terms.

3. Also refer note no. 37 s

4. Disclosures under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 ( to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company):

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting

year 45.76 36.96
(if) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the

accounting year - -

(ili) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the

supplier beyond the appointed day

(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year - -

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting]
ear -

{vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until

such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid
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5. Ageing has been considered from the date of expiry of credit period, if available or from the date of transaction.

Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

More
Particular Unbilled not due | Less than 1year| 1-2years | 2-3 years than 3 Total
years
(i) Micro, and Small Enterprises -undisputed 35,93 - 9.83 - - - 45.76
(ii) Micro and Small Enterprises -disputed - - - - - - -
(i) Others- Undisputed 217.81 2.83 361.81 5.26 5.09 7.85 600.65
(ii) Others -Disputed B - 3,74 3.91 246 |  30.31 40.42
Total 253.74 2.83 375.38 9.17 7.55 38.16 686.83
Trade payables ageing schedule as at March 31, 2024
More
Particular Unbilled not due | Less than 1 year| 1-2years | 2-3 years than 3 Total
years
(i) Micro and Small Enterprises -undisputed 26.96 3.65 6.35 - - - 26.96
(ii) Micro and Small Medium Enterprises -disputed - - - - - - -
(i) Others- Undisputed 304.44 58.46 197.64 22.07 11.94 13.83 608.38
(ii) Others -Disputed - - 49.72 26.28 24.97 | 12238 | 223.35
Total 331.40 62.11 253.71 48.35 36.91 | 136.21 868.69
o7 Financial liabilities- Current :Others?
(at amortised cost and fair value through profit and loss)
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
At Amortised Cost: ’
Interest accrued but not due 18.26 13.97
Capital creditors 515.80 414.92
Dues to related parties (refer note no. 43) 4.29 0.90
Security deposits from vendors and others 23.53 28.85
Employee Liabilities 81.88 65.84
At fair value through profit and loss:
Other liabilities' 15.83 294
Total 659.59 527.42
Notes:

1. Other liabilities represent liability arising from net losses on mark to market valuation of derivatives undertaken to hedge risk of

fluctuation in commodity prices.

2. For details of classification of financial liabilities and fair value hierarchy refer note no. 44.

28 Provisions : Current
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Employee benefits' 84.31 61.08
Provision for site restoration and rehabilitation** 11.64 -
Disputes and claims® 90.49 85.87
Total 186.44 146.95
Notes:
1. Includes gratuity, post retirement medical benefits (PRMB) to the extent considered current and leave encashment. Also refer note no.
40.
2. Provision for site restoration and rehabilitation
Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Opening balance } _
Add: Unwinding of discount - -
Revision in estimates* - -
Reclassified from Non Current provisions 11.64 -
Closing balance 11.64 -

*Also refer note 36 for depreciation and amortisation of site restoration assets.
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3.The provisions for site restoration and rehabilitation represent the management’s best estimate of the costs which will be incurred in
the future to meet the Company’s obligations under existing Indian law and the terms of the Company’s contractual arrangements for
coal mines. These amounts are calculated by considering discount rates within the range of 8% to 9%, and become payable on closure of
mines and are expected to be incurred over a period of upto 2 years.

4. Provision for disputes and claims As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Opening balance 85.87 114.28
Interest charged during the year 462 4.63
Payment made/adjusted during the year - (33.04)
Closing balance! 90.49 85.87

1. Represents provision for disputed case (including interest) with Madhya Pradesh Electricity Board (MPEB)/Chhattisgarh State
Electricity Board (CSEB) amounting to ¥ 49.60 Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥49.60 Crores) for electricity duty/surcharge pending in
Chhattisgarh High Court and provision for vendor disputed case related to mining and transporatation charges of raw material
amounting to ¥ 40.89 Crores (March 31,2024 Z 36.27 Crores). The above provision is net of amount paid under protest amounting to %

33.03 Crores (March 31, 2024: Z 33.03 Crores).

Other liabilities : Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Deferred Government grants (refer note no. 23(1)) 41.40 26.35
Statutory liabilities™ 848.82 827.38
Advance from customers” 165.24 166.05
Total 1,055.46 1,019.78
Notes:

1. Also refer note 37.

2. Advance from customers are contract liabilities and include amounts received under supply agreements. The advance payment plus
interest thereon will be settled by supplying respective commodity over a period up to twelve months under an agreed delivery schedule
as per the terms of the respective agreements. As these are contracts that the Company expects, and has the ability, to fulfil through
delivery of a non-financial item, these are recognised as advance from customers and will be released to the income statement as
respective commodity is delivered under the agreements.

3. During the year ended March 31, 2025 certain unclaimed liabilities aggregating € 35.68 Crores (March 31, 2024: 2114 Crores) towards
charges for power purchased from market sources and internally transferred from Independent Power Plant have been written back in
view of applicability of The Limitation Act, 1963 which is supported by legal opinions obtained in this regard.
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30 Revenue from operations

31

32

. For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of products and supply of power 15,807.97 13,140.73
Total 15,807.97 13,140.73
Notes:

1. (a) Revenue from sale of products and supply of power comprises of revenue from contracts with customers of ¥ 16,160.88
Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥ 13,583.49 Crores) and net loss on mark-to-market of Z 352.91 Crores (Net loss on March 31, 2024: X 442.76
Crores) and includes gains/losses relating to sale of products during the year at prices that were provisional at the time of sale and
are pending final settlement at the year end.

(b) Includes Z 166.05 Crores (March 31, 2024: ¥ 155.16 Crores) for which contract liabilities existed at the beginning of the year.

2. Performance obligation pending at the year end in respect of sale of products to customers recognised during the year are
immaterial and hence not disclosed separately. Corresponding revenue will be recognised as and when such obligations will be
performed.

3. For details on disaggregation of revenue, refer note 42D.

4. Majority of the Company’s sales of products and supply of power are against advances or against letters of credit/cash

against documents/ guarantees of banks of national standing. Where sales are made on credit, the amount of consideration

does not contain any significant financing component as payment terms are within the normal credit period. As per the

terms of the contract with its customers, either all performance obligations are to be completed within one year from the

date of such contracts or the Company has a right to receive consideration from its customers for all completed performance
obligations. Accordingly, the Company has availed the practical expedient available under paragraph 121 of Ind AS 115 and
dispensed with the additional disclosures with respect to performance obligations that remained unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) at the balance sheet date. Further, since the terms of the contracts directly identify the transaction price for each of the
completed performance obligations, in all material respects, there are no elements of transaction price which have not been
included in the revenue recognised in the financial statements.

Other operating income

R For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(i) Export incentives 27.68 38.77
(ii) Scrap sales 49.70 48.73
(iii) Miscellaneous income' 23.57 54.06
Total 100.95 141.56
1.Miscellaneous income majorily sale of Energy saving certificates.
Other income
Particulars For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Net gain on investments measured at fair vatue through profit or loss 53.37 10.18
Interest Income from financial assets at amortised cost
(i) Bank deposits 415 2.30
(ii) Others' 143.33 99.76
Gain on sale/discard of property, plant and equipments 14.92 44.88
Unclaimed liabilities written back (net)®>* 268.79 60.69
Miscellaneous income® 47.95 31.29
Deferred Government grant income” 26.73 25.50
Total 559.24 274.60

1. Includes Z 8.78 Crores on March 31, 2025 (March 31, 2024: ¥ 11.31 Crores) on account of late payment surcharge on delayed
payments. As per the terms of power sales agreement, the Company is entitled to receive late payment surcharge on delayed
payment at SBI PLR rate.

2. During the year ended March 31, 2024 the Company has reversed net provision of Z 49 Crores (including interest of ¥ 37 Crores)
towards an arbitration award in favour of a vendor in a prior year, now debarred under Law of Limita ind hence written back.

3. During the year, provision aggregating ¥ 182.64 Crores towards upkeep charges recognised in prior years as per Arbitration
order which was subject to conditions specified therein, has been reversed pursuant to management’s re-assessment regarding
adherence with aforesaid conditions and ongoing discussions with the vendor as submitted before Hon'ble Delhi High Court. The
management strongly believes that the Company does not have any obligation to pay this amount, which is duly supported by
legal opinion obtained in this regard.
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